
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

February 22nd, 2023 2 

 3 

Members Present: Chairman Dave Blomseth, Tom Disse, Kohl Skalin, Tommy Ailie, County 4 

Commissioner Erica Jepson, Harvey Aho, Mary Seaberg, Nick Bowers, Steve Lindow, Jeff 5 

Moritz, Kim Mattson, Craig Hall, Zoning Director Kyle Vareberg, and County Attorney Brian 6 

McDonald. Members Absent: County Commissioner John Okeson 7 

  8 

Chairman Dave Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Technician Nicole Hultin recorded the minutes. 10 

 11 

Harvey Aho made a motion to approve the minutes from the February 22nd, 2023, meeting. 12 

Skalin second. All members in favor. Motion carried.  13 

 14 

Chairman Dave Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 15 

recommendations of the Planning Commission would be forwarded to the County Board of 16 

Commissioners for final action.  17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

New Business: 22 

 23 

1. APPLICANT: Sarah R Bachmann 13298 Co Rd 115 Frazee, MN 56544 Project 24 

Location: 13298 Co Rd 115 Frazee, MN 56544 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: 25 

Tax ID Numbers: 29.0066.000 & 29.0067.000 Section 14 Township 138 Range 039; 26 

NE1/4 OF NE1/4 EX 2.65 AC IN SE COR; 230' N&S BY 500' E&W IN SE COR OF 27 

NE1/4 OF NE1/4 APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request 28 

a Conditional Use Permit for a Non-Shoreland Multi-Unit Development consisting of 29 

fifteen (15) units. 30 

 31 

 32 

Sarah Bachmann presented the application. She stated they had been working with US Fish and 33 

Wildlife on developing the land into a wildlife habitat, and now that now that the landscape is 34 

complete, they would like to move forward with building. The plan is for fifteen (15) units on 35 

forty (40) acres. She stated that they may not build all fifteen, and that it will be a slow process. 36 

 37 

Shawn May with the US Fish and Wildlife spoke and shared that he had been working with 38 

Bachmann’s since 2017 to enhance the land. He commented that the proposal won’t affect any of 39 

the work that has been done. He stated that they just need to be sure there’s proper sewage 40 

removal. 41 

 42 

Lindow asked if all units would be connected to one septic. 43 

 44 

Vareberg stated that there will be a shared well, but each unit will have its own holding tank. 45 

 46 



 

 

2 

 

Disse asked if they would sell the units or rent them. 47 

 48 

Bachmann said they will be rentals. 49 

 50 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application, testimony was closed. 51 

 52 

Skalin stated that he doesn’t see any issues from a Planning and Zoning perspective. 53 

 54 

Hall agreed. 55 

 56 

 57 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve the application; Moritz second. Roll Call; 58 

All in favor. Motion carried. 59 

 60 

 61 

 62 

 63 

2. APPLICANT: Michael D Anderson 213 Willow St E Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 64 

Project Location: TBD County Hwy 6 Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 LEGAL LAND 65 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 19.0047.003 Section 04 Township 138 Range 66 

041; 4-138-41 PT GOVT LOTS 3-4, PT SE1/4 NW1/4: COMM CTR SEC 4, W 132' 67 

TO POB; N 165', E 132', N 1906.08', W 66', N 432.69', NW 103.08', N 150.01', W 68 

1100.2', SLY AL TH 59 1095.52', E 300', NLY 786.06', E 227.28', SELY 599.44', 69 

SLY 614.87', S 378.12', SW 894.46', W 326.92', W 105.4', S 58.99', E 1264.98' TO 70 

POB. TRACT A-2. APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 71 

Request a Preliminary Plat for a common interest community consisting of twenty-72 

one (21) units to be called LAKER ISLAND STORAGE FIRST ADDITION. 73 

 74 

 75 

Adam Geiger with Meadowland Surveying presented the application. He stated that the Highway 76 

Department has accepted the proposed approach, that they have submitted a Storm Water 77 

Management Plan, and that any MPCA requirements would be completed before construction 78 

would begin. 79 

 80 

Lindow asked about a potential Creek on the South side. 81 

 82 

Vareberg said it’s a public ditch. 83 

 84 

Lindow asked if runoff will go into the ditch. 85 

 86 

Geiger said it will all be accounted for in the engineered plan. 87 

 88 

Scott Walz with Meadowland Surveying stated there will be stormwater retention areas. 89 

 90 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application, testimony was closed. 91 

 92 



 

 

3 

 

Skalin commented on the number of businesses that already exist along that section of the 93 

Highway, and that this is just an addition to his existing storage. 94 

 95 

Hall said it’s very consistent with the area. 96 

 97 

 98 

 99 

MOTION: Aho motioned to approve the application; Ailie second. Roll Call; All in 100 

favor. Motion carried. 101 

 102 

 103 

 104 

 105 

3. APPLICANT: William L & Karolyn K Zurn 18629 Co Hwy 14 Callaway, MN 106 

56521-9785 Project Location: TBD 270th St Audubon, MN 56511 LEGAL LAND 107 

DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 14.0022.000 Section 05 Township 140 Range 108 

042; FRAC NE1/4, LOTS 6 & 7 & NE1/4 OF SE1/4 LESS 158.30 ACRES 109 

APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use 110 

Permit to operate a feedlot. 111 

 112 

 113 

Chairman David Blomseth stated that due to a conflict of interest that he would only be 114 

moderating testimony and would not be commenting or voting on this application. 115 

 116 

 117 

Eric Zurn presented the application. He stated that there would be nine hundred ninety-nine 118 

(999) animal units.  119 

 120 

Skalin asked if all the manure would be stored under the barn or if there would be some outside 121 

storage. 122 

 123 

Zurn said there would be no outside storage. 124 

 125 

Lindow asked how many sows there would be.  126 

 127 

Zurn said there would be nine hundred ninety-nine (999) animal units which amounts to 128 

approximately two thousand five hundred (2500) sows.  129 

 130 

Lindow asked if there would be an Environmental Assessment Worksheet (EAW) filled out for 131 

this application. 132 

 133 

Vareberg said the County has no regulatory authority over an EAW for this application. He 134 

stated that the Governing agency issuing the feedlot permit is required for the environmental 135 

review which would be the MPCA, so we have no comment as a county on the EAW. 136 

 137 

Lindow asked if this is considered shoreland. 138 



 

 

4 

 

 139 

Vareberg stated that the body of water to the east is a wetland and the body of water to the south 140 

is Rassum Lake. He said the property boundaries are within one thousand (1000) feet of the lake, 141 

but if the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) requires it, the property will be 142 

subdivided and then the boundaries would be more than one thousand (1000) from the natural 143 

environment lake.  144 

 145 

Lindow asked about the location of Rassum lake because the GIS map shows it being to the east 146 

instead of the south. 147 

 148 

Vareberg stated that he did extensive work with the Minnesota DNR to determine the actual 149 

location of Rassum Lake, which is to the South. 150 

 151 

Lindow asked if feedlots need to be three hundred (300) feet from a natural environment lake. 152 

 153 

Vareberg said that is correct, and that if a split is required the property will be more than one 154 

thousand (1000) feet from Rassum lake and more than three hundred (300) feet from the 155 

tributary river going through that wetland.  156 

 157 

Lindow stated that number one (1) in the application asks about nuisance and odor. He said the 158 

smells will impact those that hunt on the neighboring property and buildings will affect the 159 

distance required from a building for shooting. He asked what the Zurns will do to reduce 160 

ammonia from the pit and the animals. 161 

 162 

Zurn said they will do whatever the MPCA requires.  163 

 164 

Jim Blair with the Swine Vet Center spoke and stated that they control odor with pit additives, 165 

and there will be filtration they can run it through. He said there are about six (6) to seven (7) 166 

days a year when it’s being applied that the smells can be offensive. 167 

 168 

Lindow asked if waste will stay on Zurn property. 169 

 170 

Zurn said he does plan to use it himself and share it with neighbors that have expressed an 171 

interest. 172 

 173 

Lindow asked if they will be injecting the manure.  174 

 175 

Zurn said he will do whatever is required by the MPCA. He said he does not know if they require 176 

it. He said the MPCA won’t work with them unless they get approved for the Conditional Use 177 

Permit, so he doesn’t know exactly what they are going to require. 178 

 179 

Jepson commented on the drain tile that drains into the lake, and asked if the manure pit under 180 

the barns will require the drain tile to be removed. 181 

 182 

Zurn said the pit will be completely confined, and that any drain tile in the way will be removed. 183 

 184 



 

 

5 

 

Lindow asked on the map where the facilities and holding pond will be located. 185 

 186 

Zurn said it will depend on the engineered plan. 187 

 188 

Skalin said they’ll have to be wherever the required setbacks allow. 189 

 190 

Steve Quam spoke on behalf of the Land O’ Lakes Gun club. He said that he also did research on 191 

Rassum lake. He submitted two maps to be entered into the record below: 192 

 193 

 194 



 

 

6 

 

 195 
 196 

 197 

Quam commented on needing to make factual findings. He stated that the neighbors to the east 198 

will be affected. He said that facilities need to be adequate. He says there is not adequate access 199 

to the property. He said part of making the findings is you need to comply with Minnesota Law 200 

and feedlots are not allowed in the shoreland. He also said this deserves much more than an 201 

environmental review. 202 

 203 

Willis Mattson urged the Planning Commission to deny or table until the further study offered by 204 

the County’s Comprehensive planning process is complete. He said the site would violate 205 

shoreland setback rules, that the application was incomplete, and that the commission has not 206 

been adequately informed on the impact of Concentrated Animal Feeding Operations (CAFOs). 207 

He feels they should take time and have experts come in. He said other committees may have 208 

overlooked more effective moratorium options. He also said he feels the commission may have 209 

been misled in regard to other state and federal regulatory guidelines regarding CAFOs. He 210 

shared the MPCAs role regarding odors, manure, and feedlots.  211 

 212 

Mark Geihl, a former Planning Commission member spoke and said he understands the 213 

responsibilities of the board. He said one of the responsibilities is to visit the site being proposed, 214 

and he doesn’t know how an intelligent decision can be made without visiting the site. He said a 215 

feedlot would be damaging to that area and encouraged the board to vote no. 216 

 217 

Mark Fritz, one of the Land O’ Lakes Duck Club owners spoke. He said that he googled CAFOs 218 

and didn’t find flattering info. He said it would be nice to have all the facts up front, and asked if 219 

it needs to be approved tonight or if they can get more info. 220 

 221 



 

 

7 

 

Blomseth clarified that they have to act on it tonight unless the applicant chooses to table. 222 

 223 

John LaFond spoke and commented that the applicant said it was non-shoreland in the 224 

application, but it is shoreland. He said the DNR has classified Rassum as a Natural Environment 225 

Lake. He said the Application says it won’t harm the use in the vicinity, but there will likely be 226 

multiple impacts. He reiterated comments that had been made about not shooting a gun within 227 

500 feet of a building, he stated there needed to be a better site map, that the MPCA will require 228 

an EAW, and that questions 6a-6d should have been filled out but weren’t so the application 229 

should be rejected.  230 

 231 

Lindow asked if the hunt club would be given permission to shoot within five hundred (500) feet 232 

of the building, what would that do to the people working there? 233 

 234 

LaFond said he thinks it puts the workers and animals at risk. 235 

 236 

Bernie Meyer spoke and shared his concerns regarding growth hormones and antibiotics. He 237 

asked how much water usage will be required for operation, how it will affect the water table, 238 

and asked what will happen to the lake and wetland. 239 

 240 

Mike Hutchinson spoke and inquired as to why this location was chosen. 241 

 242 

Lindow asked Hutchinson how he sees this operation in regard to the word farm. 243 

 244 

Hutchinson said it is a factory farm. 245 

 246 

Matthew Davis read a letter on behalf of Bill Henke and is entered below: 247 



 

 

8 

 

 248 
  249 

 250 

Rick Muff a hog farmer spoke in favor of the project. Muff Raises hogs in Becker and Clay 251 

counties. He stated this is not industrial or corporate farming. He said he has finishing barns that 252 

are his income, that he works with a bigger entity, and that is how he makes a living. He stated 253 

that these companies invest in facilities. He also commented that antibiotic resistance and 254 

statements regarding the drugs given to the pigs are false. He said they give very few drugs to the 255 



 

 

9 

 

pigs, and that they cannot sell the pigs with antibiotics in them, and that there are required 256 

withdrawal times before that can happen. He stated that he understands no one wants these farms 257 

in their backyard, but it is a part of being in the country. 258 

 259 

Seaberg ask Muff if his system is contained. 260 

 261 

Muff said it is totally confined and pumped once a year. He said it’s sold to farms around, and 262 

that it never sees sunlight. He said it is pumped from pit to field and injected into the ground. 263 

 264 

Skalin asked how many animal units he has in Becker County. 265 

 266 

Muff said approximately three hundred (300). His bigger barn is in Clay County. 267 

 268 

Lindow asked if he’s been out to the site to look at the road. 269 

 270 

Muff said no, but if they need to get trucks in and out, they will make sure it’s a road that can 271 

handle it. 272 

 273 

Jim Blair from the swine vet center spoke and said he estimates 4.4 million gallons of water used 274 

a year at the facility. He said they have worked with the best information available to determine 275 

where to put this facility, and that they are following the comprehensive plan that currently 276 

exists. He commented that they are following the necessary steps which are first obtaining a 277 

Conditional Use Permit (CUP), then working with the MPCA, and the Department of Natural 278 

Resources (DNR) for wells. He noted that they went through this process previously and they do 279 

have knowledge of the appropriate processes. 280 

 281 

Shawn May with the US Fish and Wildlife spoke and shared the history of Hamden slough. He 282 

talked about field trips and other events, and hunting that occur out there. He stated that the US 283 

Fish and Wildlife do have concerns that this could reduce visits to the refuge but noted that the 284 

US Fish and Wildlife does not have any regulatory jurisdiction over this CAFO, therefore they 285 

just recommend following all federal, state, and local rules and policies regarding this feedlot 286 

operation. 287 

 288 

All letters received were read by the Planning Commission members before the hearing and are 289 

entered into record below: 290 

 291 

 292 

 293 



 

 

10 

 

 294 



 

 

11 

 

 295 



 

 

12 

 

 296 



 

 

13 

 

 297 



 

 

14 

 

 298 



 

 

15 

 

 299 



 

 

16 

 

 300 



 

 

17 

 

 301 



 

 

18 

 

 302 



 

 

19 

 

 303 



 

 

20 

 

 304 



 

 

21 

 

305 



 

 

22 

 

 306 



 

 

23 

 

 307 



 

 

24 

 

 308 



 

 

25 

 

 309 



 

 

26 

 

 310 



 

 

27 

 

 311 



 

 

28 

 

 312 



 

 

29 

 

 313 



 

 

30 

 

 314 



 

 

31 

 

 315 



 

 

32 

 

 316 



 

 

33 

 

 317 



 

 

34 

 

 318 



 

 

35 

 

 319 



 

 

36 

 

 320 



 

 

37 

 

 321 



 

 

38 

 

 322 



 

 

39 

 

 323 



 

 

40 

 

 324 



 

 

41 

 

 325 



 

 

42 

 

 326 
 327 

 328 



 

 

43 

 

 329 

 330 



 

 

44 

 

 331 
 332 

 333 



 

 

45 

 

 334 
 335 

 336 

 337 
 338 



 

 

46 

 

 339 
 340 

 341 

 342 

 343 

 344 

 345 

 346 

 347 

 348 

 349 

 350 

 351 

 352 

 353 

 354 

 355 

 356 

 357 

 358 

 359 

 360 

 361 

 362 

 363 

 364 

 365 

 366 

 367 

 368 

 369 

 370 



 

 

47 

 

 371 

 372 



 

 

48 

 

 373 
 374 

 375 

 376 
 377 

 378 

 379 
 380 

 381 



 

 

49 

 

 382 
 383 

 384 



 

 

50 

 

 385 



 

 

51 

 

 386 



 

 

52 

 

 387 



 

 

53 

 

 388 



 

 

54 

 

 389 



 

 

55 

 

 390 



 

 

56 

 

 391 



 

 

57 

 

 392 



 

 

58 

 

 393 



 

 

59 

 

 394 



 

 

60 

 

 395 



 

 

61 

 

 396 



 

 

62 

 

 397 



 

 

63 

 

 398 



 

 

64 

 

 399 



 

 

65 

 

 400 



 

 

66 

 

 401 



 

 

67 

 

 402 



 

 

68 

 

 403 



 

 

69 

 

 404 



 

 

70 

 

 405 



 

 

71 

 

 406 



 

 

72 

 

 407 
 408 

 409 

 410 
 411 



 

 

73 

 

As there was no one else to speak for or against the application, testimony was closed. 412 

 413 

Skalin asked how close Eric Zurn lives to the site.  414 

 415 

Zurn stated he is about one and a half (1.5) miles as the crow flies. 416 

 417 

Lindow asked how many members visited the site. 418 

 419 

There were eight (8) members total who raised their hands. 420 

 421 

Bowers stated that he drove out the day of the hearing but didn’t drive in the driveway. 422 

 423 

Lindow asked about the Northwest corner of the red box, it looked like a couple drainage areas 424 

and what is it. 425 

 426 

Zurn spoke and said it’s a dike that was set up to prevent erosion.  427 

 428 

Lindow asked how he can put buildings out there. 429 

 430 

Zurn stated that some of the drainage will be modified because it won’t be crop land anymore. 431 

He will have to do some leveling for the site as you would with any building. 432 

 433 

Lindow asked if it would require a permit from the DNR. 434 

 435 

Zurn said it would require a permit from the Buffalo River Watershed. 436 

 437 

Skalin said it will require a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) from the 438 

Watershed. 439 

 440 

Lindow commented that it would have been helpful to see a site plan in with his application. 441 

 442 

Zurn asked Vareberg if that was required. 443 

 444 

Vareberg stated what the ordinance says is that this Planning Commission prescribes what they 445 

desire. Prior to this meeting Vareberg said he was given no direction to prescribe anything from 446 

him besides a Conditional Use Permit application. 447 

 448 

Jepson asked about Chapter 8: Section 11, letter B of the Zoning ordinance where it states:  449 

Application. An application for a conditional use permit shall be filed with the Zoning 450 

Administrator on a form prescribed by the Board of County Commissioners. The application 451 

shall be accompanied by such plans, elevations and site plans as prescribed by the County 452 

Planning Commission. 453 

And asked “as prescribed” is it that they didn’t ask for it. 454 

 455 

Vareberg said there’s nothing prescribed prior to this for feedlots.  456 

 457 



 

 

74 

 

Jepson asked then if it’s not required, because it’s not required in our Zoning ordinance. 458 

 459 

Vareberg said that is correct. 460 

 461 

Lindow said you would think with something like a feedlot, there would be requirements in the 462 

ordinance. 463 

 464 

Vareberg said it has been vetted at the County Board and they have decided to tackle it through 465 

the comprehensive plan update in the next year. 466 

 467 

Skalin said he can’t think of a better location for this application. 468 

 469 

Jepson commented that she lives close to Briard’s farm, and she doesn’t smell anything from 470 

there. She also asked how close to the gun club the feedlot would be located. 471 

 472 

Vareberg said he didn’t think it would be any closer than the existing building is now. 473 

 474 

Lindow mentioned again that without knowing where the buildings are going to be, its not 475 

known if it will change where the hunt club is allowed to shoot from and that could cause 476 

problems for the club. 477 

 478 

Vareberg explained that four-hundred ninety-nine (499) animal units would be allowed through 479 

our ordinance, as would construction of a house and those same five hundred (500) foot rules 480 

would be in place. 481 

 482 

Lindow said if there’s any buildings along the east line, the gun club cannot shoot within five 483 

hundred (500) feet. 484 

 485 

Vareberg explained what is permissible per the Zoning ordinance and stated that this feedlot 486 

would be further away. 487 

 488 

Hall said they’ve heard all the testimony. As long as they are following all the regulations; one 489 

thousand (1000) feet and three hundred (300) feet, what the Planning Commission’s is 490 

challenged with doing is making the decision of whether or not it fits the area. He said he 491 

believes it will stay zoned agricultural, and he doesn’t see a reason to hold them back. They need 492 

to go on and work with the Buffalo River Watershed and the MPCA.  493 

 494 

Disse commented that the County Board makes the final decision. 495 

 496 

Mortiz said he called and talked to the Buffalo River Watershed, and they told him they adopted 497 

County rules, so if the County approves this application, they will abide by that. 498 

 499 

Skalin commented that the three hundred (300) feet and one thousand (1000) feet can be 500 

stipulated in the motion. 501 

 502 



 

 

75 

 

On behalf of himself and present legal counsel, Vareberg made a request to Blomseth that 503 

whatever the motion may be, that he would direct staff and counsel to draft findings that would 504 

be consistent with that motion. He also asked that they set a special meeting to be held at 7:30 505 

am on May 16th, in the 3rd floor meeting room of the courthouse to consider those findings 506 

drafted by staff and counsel. 507 

 508 

 509 

MOTION: Lindow motioned to deny the application; Motion died due to a lack of 510 

second. 511 

 512 

 513 

 514 

MOTION: Skalin motioned to approve the application with the stipulation that any 515 

structures be at least three hundred (300) feet from the tributary and one thousand 516 

(1000) feet from the lake, and that the Planning Commission would meet at 7:30 am 517 

on May 16th in the 3rd floor meeting room of the courthouse to consider findings 518 

consistent with the motion.; Hall second.  519 

 520 

 521 

Seaberg asked Moritz’s opinion on this request. 522 

 523 

Moritz said that if proper care is given, the risk to the water is significantly less, but there is 524 

always a risk with anything. 525 

 526 

 527 

Roll Call; Aho, Hall, Ailie, Skalin, Disse, Moritz, and Seaberg in favor. Lindow and 528 

Bowers opposed. Blomseth and Mattson abstained. Motion carried. 529 

 530 

 531 

 532 

Other Business: 533 

 534 

I) Tentative Date for Next Informational Meeting: May 24th, 2023; 8:00 am; 3rd Floor 535 

Meeting Room in the Becker County Courthouse, Detroit Lakes, MN. 536 

 537 

 538 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Seaberg made a motion to 539 

adjourn. Disse second. All in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 8:00 pm.  540 

 541 

 542 

________________________________                ________________________________ 543 

David Blomseth, Chairman    Jeff Moritz, Secretary 544 

 545 

ATTEST 546 

      _______________________________________ 547 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  548 


